

Minutes of postponed meeting of the Board of Regents of the University of Wisconsin: May 27, 1941. 1941

Neenah, Wisconsin: Board of Regents of the University of Wisconsin System, 1941

https://digital.library.wisc.edu/1711.dl/NYITTKATNEHKR8H

Copyright 2008 Board of Regents of the University of Wisconsin System

The libraries provide public access to a wide range of material, including online exhibits, digitized collections, archival finding aids, our catalog, online articles, and a growing range of materials in many media.

When possible, we provide rights information in catalog records, finding aids, and other metadata that accompanies collections or items. However, it is always the user's obligation to evaluate copyright and rights issues in light of their own use.

POSTPONED MEETING OF THE BOARD OF REGENTS

Tuesday, May 27, 1941

At the residence of Regent Sensenbrenner, Neenah, Wisconsin

Meeting of the Board of Regents postponed from May 10, 1941 to May 27, 1941

President Glover presiding

PRESENT: Regents Callahan, Cleary, Glover, Hodgkins, Holmes, Kleczka, Sensenbrenner, Vergeront, Werner.

ABSENT: Regent Ekern.

A communication was received from Regent Ekern from California regretting that he could not return in time for the meeting.

Upon motion of Regent Werner, seconded by Regent Callahan, it was VOTED, That the minutes of the last meeting of the Board held on March 8, 1941, be approved as sent out to the Regents.

Upon motion of Regent Callahan, seconded by Regent Kleczka, it was VOTED, That the minutes of the meeting of the Executive Committee held on April 2, 1941, be approved, ratified, and confirmed.

Regent Sensenbrenner referred to a letter which he had received from Governor Heil, and read the following statement:

"A few days ago I received a letter from Governor Heil. It was addressed to me, not to the Board of Regents.

In it he called attention to a radio program - 'Wake up America' - now being broadcast over WHA, the University station. His curiosity was aroused by the titles and he asked if I was familiar with it.

He said that complaints had come to him that some things were not satisfactory at the University. That the views of some members

of the faculty were subjects of criticism. He cited the fact that Dean Garrison had opposed Bill 183 S. before a legislative committee and at a hearing before him.

I have discussed the contents of the Governor's letter with a number of the Regents. They expressed an interest and propose to make inquiry. The Board may wish to consider the matter when members have had a chance to make their inquiries."

RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE PRESIDENT

- Military Science and Tactics -

1. That Lt. Col. Herbert H. Lewis be promoted from assistant professor of military science and tactics to professor of military science and tactics and commandant, in place of Colonel W. G. Weaver, transferred.

Adopted.

- Letters and Science -

- 1. That C. H. Ruedisili serve as assistant dean of the College of Letters and Science during the summer of 1941; salary \$350 for the period; charge to "adviser help", L. & S. Administration.

 Adopted.
- 2. That the terms of the appointment of Leon N. Brillouin, visiting professor of mathematical physics, be changed from the second semester of 1940-41 to the period May 12, 1941 to the close of the second semester of 1940-41; salary \$800 for the period; charge to Letters and Science balances. Adopted.
- 3. That Joaquin Ortega, professor of Spanish, be granted leave of absence, without pay, for the second semester of 1940-41.

 Adopted.

- Extension -

1. That George G. Town, professor of chemistry, Milwaukee Center, receive an increase in salary from \$3,552 to \$3,939.45 for the academic year 1940-41, because of additional service, charge increase to item for additional instruction, B.P.240, class instruction, fund 2-AB.

Adopted.

1. That the Phi Sigma medal be recognized as an official University award.

Adopted.

- Gifts and Grants -

- 1. That the following gifts and grants be approved:
 - (1) 750.00 Superior Sugar Refining Company and Menominee Sugar Company, renewal industrial fellowship for study on sugar beets to be carried on in the Departments of Plant Pathology, Agronomy, and Soils, under the direction of J. C. Walker, J. H. Torrie, and Emil Truog, from April 1 to December 31, 1941, and that the Comptroller be authorized to sign the agreement.
 - (2) 200.00 Organic Nitrogen Institute, Atlanta, Georgia, establishment of a second industrial fellowship for study on nitrogen fertilizers to be carried on in the Department of Horticulture, from April 1 to November 1, 1941, and that the Comptroller be authorized to sign the agreement.
 - (3) 800.00 McConnon & Company, Winona, Minnesota Jellewsky 1,200.00 Tobacco By-Products & Chemical Corporation, Louisville, Kentucky. For the establishment of industrial fellowship to study insect damage caused by pea aphids in the Department of Economic Entomology under the supervision of J. H. Lilly, and that the Comptroller be authorized to sign the agreement.
 - (4) 300.00 Research Products Corporation, Madison, for the establishment of an industrial fellowship for studies on erosion in the Department of Soils under the supervision of Professor R. J. Muckenhirn, from April 1, to December 31, 1941, and that the Comptroller be authorized to sign the agreement.
 - (5) 1,200.00 National Dairy Council, Chicago, for the establishment of a third industrial fellowship for studies on the nutritive values of butter-fat and animal oils in the Department of Biochemistry under the supervision of Professors E. B. Hart and C. A. Elvehjem, from April 1, 1941 to March 31, 1942, and that the Comptroller be authorized to sign the agreement.

- (6) 600.00 American Society of Heating and Ventilating Engineers, for the continuation of the research fellowship for the year July 1, 1941 to July 1, 1942.
- (7) 1,300.00 Joseph Campbell Company, Chicago, for the establishment of an industrial fellowship in the Department of Economic Entomology under the direction of J. H. Lilly, from May 1, 1941 to February 1, 1942, and that the Comptroller be authorized to sign the agreement.
- (8) 400.00 Standard Agricultural Chemicals, Inc., Hoboken, N. J., renewal industrial fellowship for studies on fruit diseases in the Department of Plant Pathology, under the supervision of Professor G. W. Keitt, from May 1, to December 31, 1941, and that the Comptroller be authorized to sign the agreement.
- (9) 7,000.00 Jane Coffin Childs Memorial Fund for Medical Research, New Haven, Connecticut, for a study on intermediary protein metabolism of tumors under the direction of Dr. Philip P. Cohen, for a two-year period, \$3,750 from July 1, 1941 to June 30, 1942, and \$3,250 from July 1, 1942 to June 30, 1943. (The fund to be budgeted as follows: \$2000, salary of Dr. Cohen; \$600, salary of technician; \$1150, apparatus).
- X (10) 6,000.00 Carnegie Corporation, New York, for development of work in music.
 - (11) 30.00 William F. Pflueger, 716 Ninth Street, Manitowoc, as the initial payment for the establishment of the William F. Pflueger Loan Fund for Pharmacy Students; this amount together with further donations to be deposited in the University trust fund until the fund amounts to \$250.
 - (12) 50.00 Junior Division of the University League, Mrs. H. D. Bruhn, treasurer, for scholarship fund.
 - (13) 1,000.00 The Upjohn Company, Kalamazoo, Michigan, for the establishment of a fellowship for research in the study of trichomoniesis, in the Department of Pharmacology, under the supervision of Dr. A. L. Tatum, and that the Comptroller be authorized to sign the agreement.

Adopted.

- Degrees -

1. That in accordance with the certification of the Registrar the following degrees be granted:

:3ACHELOR OF ARTS

Donald Earl Bartelt John Value Dennis Lowell Guy Richardson

BACHELOR OF PHILOSOPHY (Commerce)

Walter Michael Masse

BACHELOR OF PHILOSOPHY

Thomas Edward Blade

BACHELOR OF SCIENCE (Pharmacy)

Caroldean Alice Buelow Edward John Weber

BACHELOR OF SCIENCE (Hygiene)

Carol Genevieve McBain

BACHELOR OF LAWS
Date of March 13, 1941

Kenneth Harrison Conway Miles James McMillin George Thorpe Merriman Henry John Olk

Date of March 27, 1941

William Thomas Brady John George Clarkson

Date of April 10, 1941

Clair LaVern Finch

Adopted.

Upon motion of Regent Werner, seconded by Regent Kleczka, recommendation No. 1 under Military Science and Tactics, recommendations 1 to 3 under Letters and Science, recommendation No. 1 under Extension, recommendation No. 1 under Honors, recommendation No. 1 under Gifts and Grants, and recommendation No. 1 under Degrees were adopted.

ADDITIONAL RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE PRESIDENT

- Administration and General -

1. That Professor N. P. Feinsinger be appointed special assistant to the President for the period June 23 to September 16, 1941, to continue his duties as Chairman of the University Committee on Occupational Deferment, and that he be paid \$500 for the period in addition to his regular salary of \$531.25 for teaching in the last five weeks of the Law School Summer Session (from July 28 to August 29); the \$500 stipend to be charged to Regents' Unassigned 1-E, 1941-42 budget and paid in two installments of \$250 each, payable at the end of each of the following periods: (1) June 23 to July 28, and (2) August 29 to September 16, 1941.

Adopted.

That the salaries of the following members of the School of Education staff be increased by the amounts indicated for the final month of the 1940-41 academic year, chargeable to the budgeted item for token payments to teachers in public schools where practice teaching takes place:

Bassett, Gladys B.	\$30.00
Borchers, Gladys L.	15.00
Budewig, Flossie	24.00
Clark, Margaret O.	22.00
Cronin, Katherine L.	75.00
Davis, Ira C.	18.00
Hoard, Marjorie J.	34.00
Johnson, Ruth M.	18.00
Low, Camilla M.	14.00
Nofsker, Julia F. (Mrs.)	6.00
, Porter, William A.	9.00
Total	\$265.00

Adopted.

3. That the 1-E revolving fund budget of Radio Station WHA be increased \$1,750 for the balance of the fiscal year 1940-41, to be distributed as follows: Supplies and Expense \$750, Equipment \$1,000; chargeable to Regents Unassigned 1-E. (Confirming verbal approval by Executive Committee.)

Adopted.

Upon motion of Regent Densenbrenner, seconded by Regent Callahan, recommendations 1 to 3 under Administration and General were adopted.

- Education -

- l. That Glen G. Eye be appointed principal and director of practice teaching at Wisconsin High School for the academic year 1941-42, salary \$4,000 per annum, charge to vice Mackenzie, 1941-42 budget.

 Adopted.
- 2. That Clifford S. Liddle be appointed assistant principal at Wisconsin High School for the academic year 1941-42; salary \$2,400 per annum; charge to item for assistant principal, 1941-42 budget.

 Adopted.

- Engineering -

1. That the resignation of Richard S. McCaffery, professor of mining and metallurgy, be accepted; to take effect at the close of the academic year 1940-41.

Adopted.

Upon motion of Regent Cleary, seconded by Regent Callahan, recommendations 1 and 2 under Education and recommendation No. 1 under Engineering were adopted.

Upon motion of Regent Callahan, seconded by Regent Hodgkins, it was VOTED, That the actions taken by the President since the last meeting of the Board (March 8, 1941) be approved and made a part of the records of this meeting.

Regent Sensenbrenner as chairman of the Finance Committee made a verbal report on the budget for 1941-42 stating that the Committee worked until midnight on Monday evening, and that they would hold another meeting for the completion of the budget before the next meeting of the Regents. The Regents voted to approve Mr. Sensenbrenner's report.

The Legislative Building Program was discussed and upon motion of Regent Cleary, seconded by Regent Callahan, it was

VOTED, That a suitable communication be prepared by the President of the Board of Regents and the Chairman of the Finance Committee and forwarded to the Speaker of the Assembly, the Lieutenant Governor, the President Pro Tem of the Senate, and the Governor.

Upon recommendation of the President, and upon motion of Regent

Callahan, seconded by Regent Kleczka, it was

VOTED, That the program and budget for the training course for draftsmen in the Milwaukee Extension Center at a cost of \$3,898.59, chargeable to fund 15B, Milwaukee EDT, be approved. The course mational Lyline -

Upon recommendation of the President, and upon motion of Regent

Sensenbrenner, seconded by Regent Werner, it was

VOTED, That an application from N.Y.A. for a rehabilitation project for rejected draftees be approved, and that a contract be made with the United States government to pay on contract basis the cost of operation with yo cost to the University, and also to complete certain parts of the Stadium dormitory nath defense construction project.

Upon recommendation of the President, and upon motion of Regent Sensenbrenner, seconded by Regent Callahan, it was VOTED, That the construction of a fireplace on the lake shore, the site to be selected by the University administration, from funds donated by student organizations be approved with no cost to the University.

Upon motion of Regent Cleary, seconded by Regent Sensenbrenner, it

was VOTED, That the President of the University and the Comptroller be authorized to make budget adjustments including transfers from Regents' Unassigned to complete the business of the University for the current year.

Upon motion of Regent Kleczka, seconded by Regent Holmes, it was VOTED. That the President and the Secretary of the Regents be authorized and directed to petition the Mayor and Common Council of the City of Milwaukee in behalf of The Regents of The University of Wisconsin to vacate the alley in the block between North 6th Street, North 7th Street, West State Street and West Kilbourn Avenue in the City of Milwaukee, and that the City be requested also to vacate the sewer and catch basin located in the above described alley.

Upon motion of Regent Cleary, seconded by Regent Callahan, it was VOTED. That the following transfers from Regents' Unassigned be approved. (Confirming verbal approval of the Executive Committee.)

- a.) \$3,450 from Regents' Unassigned 1-E to Physical Plant part-time help
- b.) 2,000 from Regents' Unassigned 1-E to Medical School, supplies and
- 400 from Regents' Unassigned 1-D to Medical School, equipment c.)

Upon motion of Regent Sensenbranner, seconded by Regent Cleary, it

VOTED, That authority be granted to continue the operation of the Chadbourne Hall laundry on a reduced schedule for emergencies and special work.

Note: Part of the laundry for Residence Halls and Union, and all Hospital laundry is now being sent to Waupun.

Upon recommendation of the President, it was
VOTED, That Miss Margaret Pride Hebard be appointed assistant to the
Dean of Women in charge of occupational advising beginning May 26, 1941,
salary \$3.000 per annum, 12 months basis; charged to gift funds, 15B.

President Dykstra reported on the recent decision of the Supreme Court re University liability under "safe place" statute holding that the University is not liable.

The Comptroller presented a report re the M. W. McArdle Fund. (Copy on file.)

The matter of universal circulation of the Daily Cardinal was discussed and referred to the Executive Committee of the Regents for report to the Board at the next meeting.

Upon motion of Regent Sensenbrenner, seconded by Regent Cleary, it was VOTED, That the request of the girls in Elizabeth Waters Hall to operate a hairdressing establishment be approved.

Upon motion of Regent Sensenbrenner, seconded by Regent Hodgkins, solutions.

VOTED, That a request be made to the Emergency Board for the sum

VOTED, That a request be made to the Emergency Board for the su of \$7,000 for the purchase of the Fleckenstein property on Lorch Street.

bleed No. 157

Upon motion of Regent Cleary, seconded by Regent Callahan, it was VOTED, That a request be made to the Emergency Board for an appropriation of approximately \$5,000 for landscaping and grading at the Milwaukee Extension Division Building.

President Dykstra made a verbal report on the report of the Course Committee of the College of Engineering in regard to credits for courses in Aeronautics.

President Dykstra stated that he would mail to the Regents copies of the report of the Ingraham Committee on instruction and scholarships.

Upon motion of Regent Werner, seconded by Regent Callahan, it was VOTED, That the request by the Hospital and Medical School for a dormitory for internes be approved, the project to be carried out by the Wisconsin University Building Corporation, the cost to be amortized from rentals.

Upon motion of Regent Cleary, seconded by Regent Werner, the follow-

ing resolution was adopted:

RESOLVED, That the Board of Regents of the University express its appreciation to the student body for the valuable service which they rendered in constructing the road along the lake shore from the Pumping Station to the dormitories.

Upon motion of Regent Cleary, seconded by Regent Callahan, it was VOTED, That the President and Secretary of the Regents be authorized to sign a deed to the Federal Housing Administration of the John A. Cords property of Milwaukee recently acquired under foreclosure.

Note: This is preliminary to the receipt of 3% bonds which the Regents are to receive from the Government.

The Secretary presented a communication from Mrs. Julia M. Schnetz, Secretary of the Board of Visitors, regarding a change in the title of the School of Commerce. The Regents stated that this matter was under consideration and would be reported upon later.

Upon motion of Regent Callakan, seconded by Regent Kleczka, it was VOTED, That A. D. Gillett of Eveleth, Minnesota, be appointed a member of the Board of Visitors to succeed himself for the term ending July 1, 1945.

The matter of administration of Radio Station WHA which is to be transferred from the State Department of Agriculture to the Regents of the University on July 1, 1941 was discussed. President Dykstra is to bring in a report upon this matter for action by the Board at the next meeting.

Meeting adjourned at 3:00 P.M.

M. E. McCaffrey,

Secretary.

ACTIONS BY THE PRESIDENT

Since the March 8, 1941 meeting of the Regents

RESIGNATIONS:

- 1. Richard W. Husband, assistant professor of psychology, February 23, 1941.
- 2. Lancelot T. Hogben, visiting professor of natural history, February 7, 1941.
- 3. Charles L. Monroe, instructor in history, February 24, 1941.
- 4. Raymond Arthur Plath, instructor in history, February 24, 1941.
- 5. George L. Ragan, acting instructor in physics, at the close of the lst semester of 1940-41.
- 6. Gleb I. Goumeniouk, part-time instructor in electrical engineering, September 3, 1940.
- 7. Barton Mumaw, lecturer in physical education women, February 3, 1941.
- 8. Harold P. Lundgren, research associate in chemistry, March 19, 1941.
- 9. Ann Dregne Bolton, assistant supervisor in social service, March 8, 1941.
- 10. Victor Frederick Neu, senior resident in surgery, July 1, 1940.
- ll. Walter Fred Kammer, junior resident in medicine, February 23, 1941.
- 12. J. Riley Best, track assistant in physical education men, March 22, 1941.
- 13. Lloyd K. Dahl, fieldman in dairy husbandry, February 1, 1941.
- 14. Robert E. Wilfong, research assistant in chemistry, March 14, 1941.
- 15. Stanley R. Edwards, assistant in student health, March 31, 1941.
- 16. Beulah P. Field, graduate assistant in physics, February 13, 1941.
- 17. Ivan A. Wolff, research assistant in biochemistry, March 1, 1941.
- 18. Samuel L. Baritell, research assistant in plant pathology, March 19, 1941.

- 19. Carolyn Mae Clewes, research assistant in history, February 24, 1941.
- 20. David L. Bobroff, research assistant in physics, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1940-41.
- 21. Lawrence A. Plzak, assistant in the branch stations (Peninsular), February 24, 1941.
- 22. Alan Sprague, assistant in agronomy, March 1, 1941.
- 23. Elroy Hagberg, assistant in dairy industry, March 3, 1941.
- 24. Sidney H. Kalmbach, research assistant in astronomy, February 21, 1941.
- 25. Charles Milton Kirkpatrick, graduate assistant in zoology, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1940-41.
- 26. William Lester Kolb, graduate assistant in sociology and anthropology, at the beginning of the second semester of 1940-41.
- 27. George Liston Tatum, graduate assistant in physics, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1940-41.
- 28. Howard R. Kratz, graduate assistant in physics, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1940-41.
- 29. Alfred Olaf Hanson, graduate assistant in physics, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1940-41.
- 30. Robert M. Ashby, graduate assistant in physics, at the beginning of the second semester of 1940-41.
- 31. Viola Wendt, graduate assistant in English, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1940-41.
- 32. Warren W. Rouse, graduate assistant in botany, at the close of the 1st semester of 1940-41.
- 33. Mrs. Geraldine L. Walters, undergraduate assistant in chemistry, February 11, 1941.
- 34. Robert A. Gollhardt, undergraduate assistant, to take effect at the close of the 1st semester of 1940-41.
- 35. Allen S. Phelps, industrial fellow in agricultural bacteriology, March 1, 1941. (Rockelew 3 mondation)
- 36. Wilber J. Tyler, industrial fellow in dairy husbandry, March 5, 1941.
- 37. Lynn H. Solomon, dormitory fellow, at the beginning of the academic year 1940-41.

Follows

38. John Morris Blair, W.A.R.F. scholar in physics, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1940-41.

Scholar Scholar

39. Beulah Pauline Field, W.A.R.F. fellow in physics, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1940-41.

40. Dorothy S. Copps, German House scholar, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1940-41.

Arthur H. Ludwig, Sears & Roebuck agricultural foundation scholar, at the close of the 1st semester of 1940-41.

Kenneth O. Nehls, Sears & Roebuck agricultural foundation scholar October 1940.

Raphael J. Seefeldt, Sears & Roebuck agricultural foundation scholar, at the close of the 1st semester of 1940-41.

- Lloyd L. Otteson, long course scholar, at the close of the 1st semester of 1940-41.
- Eldred F. Hardtke, research assistant in psychology, April 1, 1941.
- 46. Mrs. Margaret Kent, graduate assistant in chemistry, March 1, 1941.

- Edward S. Spoerle, industrial fellow in plant pathology, March 31, 1941. International Cancer Research Foundation.
- Parvin B. Eves, county agricultural agent for Eau Claire County, April 1, 1941.
- Fred W. Kundert, clinical associate in ophthalmology, April 1, 1941.
- James R. Villemonte, research assistant in civil engineering, April 1, 1941.
- William D. O'Ryan, graduate assistant in French, February 24, 1941.
- Bernard Stepner, orchestral coach, November 30, 1940.

- 53. Robert Lee Von Berg, research fellow in chemical engineering, March 25, 1941.
- Theodore Norman Hong, non-resident scholar (graduate), at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1910-11 of the 2nd semester of 1940-41.
- 55. Barbara Elizabeth Moore, non-resident scholar (graduate), at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1940-41.

56. Ann Perlman, Travelli Foundation scholar, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1940-41.

Scholar

- 57. Anthony G. Weinlein, Wisconsin Union Board scholar, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1940-41.
- 58. Frances O. Thomas, Victor E. Albright scholar, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1940-41.
- 59. Gertrude A. Burkart, Badger Board scholar, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1940-41.
- 60. The following "Class of 1936" scholars resigned at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1940-41:

Leonard D. Hesse James S. Jensen.

- 61. Lora E. Joos, Kappa Kappa Gamma scholar, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1940-41.
- 62. Ardis J. Griem, Helen R. Olin scholar, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1940-41.
- 63. Virgil C. Bilderback, Oscar Rennebohm scholar, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1940-41.
- 64. William G. Berg, Israel Shrimski scholar, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1940-41.
- 65. Ralph R. Fish, Ida H. Sivyer scholar, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1940-41.
- 66. Tony Geram, Ida M. Sivyer scholar, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1940-41.
- 67. Isadore A. Zyduck, Ida M. Sivyer scholary at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1940-41.
- 68. Banner Bill Morgan, research assistant in zoology, April 16, 1941.
- 69. Edith I. Wing, appointment to teach a class in integrated social studies at Sparta, cancelled at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1940-41.
- 70. Robert Clayton Feather, assistant in physiotherapy, May 9, 1941.
- 71. Fred A. Baxter, publicity assistant in intercollegiate athletics, January 14, 1941.

- 72. Barbara A. Kessenich, Christian R. Stein scholar, at the beginning Sollow of the 2nd semester of 1940-41.

 72. Harry Waisman, industrial fellow in biochemistry. May 1, 19/1
- restrick & mear Bd.
- 73. Floyd C. McIntire, industrial fellow in plant pathology, March 31, 1941. International Cancer Research Foundation.
- 74. Agnes A. Friedl, home demonstration agent for Dunn County, June 14,
- 75. Wallace J. Landry, county agricultural agent for Clark County, Nay 1,
- 76. Ruth Caroline Theilacker, assistant in occupational therapy, April 30, 1941.
- 77. Ferdinand C. Jacobsen, junior resident in anesthesia, April 23, 1941.
- 73. Mary E. Hutchcroft, assistant in wildlife management, May 31, 1941.
- 79. Thomas A. Parker, assistant in agricultural economics, May 7, 1941.
- 80. The following undergraduate non-resident tuition scholars resigned at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1940-41:

Bruce L. Corbett Rollin H. Johnson Susan M. Kaufmann Sylvia S. Landau Marguerite J. McDonell Harold L. Killer

the 2nd semester of 1940-41.

13 Peggy Woodhead.

Winsor A. Mowry John I. Slaughter Virgil V. Vale I-Chuen Wang James C. Watson Elinore M. Westphal

81. Henry A. Blankenburg, "Class of 1936" scholar, at the beginning of

-5-

- 1. Melchior Palyi, visiting professor of economics, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$1,000.
- 2. Mathilde Carranza, part-time instructor in Spanish (extension), 2nd semester of 1940-41, at not to exceed \$400.
- 3. Frank Warren Crow, instructor in history (extension), from February 24, 1941 to the close of the academic year 1940-41, at \$1800 per annum, 10 months' basis.
- 4. Carolyn M. Clewes, instructor in history (extension), from February 24, 1941 to the close of the academic year 1940-41, at \$1800 per annum, 10 months' basis.
- 5. Agnes Leindorff, instructor in home economics (related arts), 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$900.
- 6. Agnes Bahlert, instructor in home economics (administration and foods), 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$600.
- 7. Joseph Palmeri, research instructor on placement and attainment examinations, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$800.
- 8. Dorothy L. Bernstein, part-time instructor in mathematics, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$600.
- 9. George Foster Evans, Jr., acting instructor in physics, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$1,000.
- 10. David A. Grant, acting instructor in psychology, March 3 to June 23, 1941, at \$1100.
- 11. Bert W. Meyer, acting assistant superintendent, Wisconsin General Hospital, beginning April 1, 1941, at \$150 a month plus 3 meals and lodging.
- 12. William Edward Walker, lecturer in commerce, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$600.
- 13. Elizabeth Waters, lecturer in physical education women, March 23, 1941, \$50.
- 14. Elizabeth S. Sokolnikoff, research associate in mathematics, for the periods February 1 to June 30, 1941 at \$650, and July 1 to August 31, 1941, at \$260.
- 15. Oliver Lamont, assistant in agronomy, April 15 to June 15, 1941, at \$120.

- 16. Edward J. Bosley, assistant in drawing and descriptive geometry, March 14, 1941 to the close of the academic year 1940-41, at \$200.
- 17. Robert Edward Wilfong, research assistant in chemistry, six months, beginning March 15, 1941, at \$100 a month.
- 18. Anthony B. Agathen, assistant in agronomy, March 15 to June 30, 1941, at \$105.
- 19. Morris A. Arneson, assistant in agronomy, March 1 to June 30, 1941, at \$120.
- 20. Norman C. Kesler, assistant in dairy plant, March 4 to June 30, 1941, at \$100 a month.
- 21. Mariana Belle Melick, assistant in nursing, beginning February 1, 1941, at \$100 a month plus 3 meals and lodging.
- 22. Daniel E. Klaus, part-time laboratory assistant in mechanical engineering, beginning March 3, 1941, at \$100.
- 23. Arthur C. Burns, part-time laboratory assistant in mechanical engineering, Beginning March 3, 1941, at \$200.
- 24. John X. Thompson, assistant in plant pathology, March 10 to April 10, 1941, at 470.
- 25. Richard H. Fosnot, assistant in plant pathology and agronomy, February 21 to March 21, 1941, at 985.
- 26. Gerald B. Borsuk, musician assistant in physical education women, beginning February 17, 1941, to be paid at the rate of \$1.00 an hour, total not to exceed \$60.
- 27. Wilber J. Tyler, $\frac{1}{2}$ time assistant in genetics, from March 6, 1941 to the close of the academic year 1940-41, at \$240.
- 28. Carolyn H. Starr, assistant in social service, beginning March 1, 1941, at \$100 a month plus 3 meals and laundry.
- 29. Edmond C. Calavan, research assistant in plant pathology, March 14 to June 30, 1941, at \$60 a month.
- 30. Edwin R. Reithmeier, assistant in genetics, February 24 to March 22, 1941, at \$85.
- 31. Kenneth Redman, half-time graduate assistant in botany, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$200.

- 32. Forest W. Stearns, graduate assistant in botany, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$375.
- 33. Russell J. Beers, graduate assistant in chemistry, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$325.
- 34. John W. Nelson, graduate assistant in chemistry, from February 17, 1941 to the close of the 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$304.32.
- 35. George S. Sprague, graduate assistant in chemistry, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$325.
- 36. Jay E. Taylor, graduate assistant in chemistry, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$325.
- 37. Ewald J. Blum, undergraduate assistant in commerce, 4 months of the 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$30.
- 38. Emma Faye Christopher, undergraduate assistant in commerce, 4 months of the 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$88.
- 39. Bertrand R. Seidman, graduate assistant in economics, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$125.
- 40. Donald M. Allen, graduate assistant in English, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$200.
- 41. Dale G. Buzzell, graduate assistant in history, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$125.
- 42. Beulah P. Field, graduate assistant in physics, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$375.
- 43. Halbert F. Gates, graduate assistant in physics, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$375.
- 44. Matilde Carranza, graduate assistant in Spanish, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$300.
- 45. Mary Isabel Winslow, graduate assistant in Spanish, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$300.
- 46. The following persons appointed graduate assistants in speech for the 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$150 each:

John Erb Dietrich Melvin Reid White.

47. Theodore J. Walker, graduate assistant in zoology, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$375.

APPOINTLEMTS:

- 48. Wilson N. Stewart, graduate assistant in botany, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$375.
- 49. Mrs. Margaret T. Kent, graduate assistant in chemistry, from February 11, 1941 to the close of the academic year 1940-41, at \$225,10 months! basis.
- 50. Robert Eugene Kent, graduate assistant in chemistry, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$325.
- 51. Charles C. Center, graduate assistant in commerce, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$280.
- 52. John W. Fuller, undergraduate assistant in commerce, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$125.
- 53. William D. Krebs, graduate assistant in commerce, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$125.
- 54. Oscar F. Litterer, graduate assistant in commerce, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$250.
- 55. John H. Shiels, graduate assistant in commerce, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$125.
- 56. Paris LeMar Brokaw, graduate assistant in economics, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$375.
- 57. Charles C. Center, graduate assistant in economics, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$125.
- 58. George C. Grosscup, graduate assistant in economics, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$250.
- 59. Vernon L. Israelson, graduate assistant in economics, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$375.
- 60. Charles C. Killingsworth, graduate assistant in economics, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$312.50.
- 61. Herbert B. Klarman, graduate assistant in economics, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$375.
- 62. George Kleiner, graduate assistant in economics, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$\infty 312.50.
- 63. Oscar F. Litterer, graduate assistant in economics, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$125.

- 64. William G. McCarroll, graduate assistant in economics, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$312.50.
- 65. Thomas H. Smith, graduate assistant in economics, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$437.50.
- 66. James H. Stauss, graduate assistant in economics, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$312.50.
- 67. Ben Sullivan Stephansky, graduate assistant in economics, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$375.
- 68. William V. Wilmot, Jr., graduate assistant in economics, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$250.
- 69. John M. Blair, graduate assistant in physics, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$375.
- 70. Francis Lee Friedman, graduate assistant in physics, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$375.
- 71. Boyd E. Macrory, graduate assistant in sociology and anthropology, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$125.
- 72. The following persons appointed theater assistants for the 1st semester of 1940-41:

 Florence Burns
 \$ 50.00

 Richard C. Church
 400.00

 Leo T. Kehl
 175.00

 Ruth S. Laux
 50.00

- 73. Lemuel A. Fraser, graduate assistant in zoology, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$375.
- 74. Robert H. Snyder, reader in sociology, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at not to exceed \$50, payable at the rate of 50ϕ an hour.
- 75. Frank E. Heilman, reader in sociology, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at not to exceed \$90, payable at the rate of 50¢ an hour.
- 76. Charles E. Prieve, reader in commerce, 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$120.
- 77. John F. Poser, junior resident in surgery, beginning March 10, 1941, at \$25 a month plus 3 meals and lodging.
- 78. James W. Brooke, junior resident in medicine, beginning February 17, 1941, at \$25 a month plus 3 meals and lodging.

- 79. Paul H. Sheats appointed to teach a class in principles and practices of adult education, West Allis, 17 meetings, beginning February 18, 1941, fees from the class not to exceed 3300.
- 80. Raymond C. Rietz to teach a course in kiln drying of lumber 242-A, Sheboygan, 10 meetings, beginning March 10, 1941, not to exceed \$200.
- 81. Helen Duff to teach a class in poetry appreciation, Madison, 12 meetings, fees from class not to exceed \$120, beginning February 25, 1941.
- 82. Lowell Kindschi to teach a class in Freshman English 1B, Waukesha, 32 meetings, beginning February 1, 1941, fees from the class not to exceed \$200.
- 83. Adolf Ramirez to read correspondence study papers in Spanish courses on a fee basis, March 10 to June 30, 1941, not to exceed \$100 for the period.
- 84. Bernita A. Burns, county 4-H Club agent for Oconto County, beginning March 16, 1941, at \$1500 per annum, 12 months' basis.
- 85. Sidney S. Mathisen, county agricultural agent for Eau Claire County, beginning March 15, 1941, at \$1900 per annum, 12 months' basis.
- 86. Arthur S. Cholewiusz, dormitory fellow, from March 1, 1941 to the gellow close of the academic year 1940-41, board and partial room rent.
- 87. William W. Dorrell, industrial fellow in agricultural bacteriology, March 1 to June 30, 1941, at \$300. Agricultural bacteriology,

88. Donald H. Nelson, industrial fellow in biochemistry, March 1 to July 1, 1941, at \$200. Heyden Chemical Comp.

- 89. Lynn K. Brunn, industrial fellow in economic entomology, March 1, 1941 to March 1, 1942, at \$750. Velsical June 1
- 90. Jagannath G. Kane, honorary scholar in chemistry, 2nd semester of 1940- Scholar 41.
- 91. The following persons appointed Sears & Roebuck agricultural foundation scholars for the 2nd semester of 1940-41:

William P. Plier \$67.50 Vernon A. Thielke 67.50 Harold A. Vickers 67.50 J. J. Menn 32.00.

92. Armin F. Krahn appointed long course scholar for the 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$50.

- 93. Edward S. Spoerl, research assistant in plant pathology, April, May and June, 1941, at \$180.
- 94. Mrs. Margaret S. Jeskey, graduate assistant in chemistry, March 1 to June 30, 1941, at the rate of \$225 per annum, 10 months' basis.
- 95. Gilbert L. Terman, assistant in soils, April 1 to June 1, 1941, at \$37.50 a month.
- 96. Glen L. Taggart, assistant in rural sociology, April 10 to May 10, 1941, at \$25.00.
- 97. Carrol Max Voss, research assistant in economic entomology, May 15 to June 30, 1941, at \$90.
- 98. Charles F. Gerlach, assistant in economic entomology, April 15 to June 30, 1941, at \$150.
- 99. Alfred Alfonse Bertagnolli, assistant in economic entomology, April 7 to June 30, 1941, at \$168.46.
- 100. Leo E. Muskavitch, assistant in the peninsular branch station, April 16 to May 15, 1941, at \$125.
- 101. The following persons appointed special lecturers in civil engineering:

Frank Jenks	6 Lectures	\$90.00
Daniel W. Mead	5 Lectures	70.00
Arthur Simon	l Lecture	25.00.

- 102. Magdalen Duncan, vacation substitute in English, April 7 to May 13, 1941, at \$187.50.
- 103. Robert M. Osborn, to teach a class in elementary mathematical analysis 51, Milwaukee evening classes, from March 26, 1941 to the close of the 2nd semester of 1940-41, \$200 for the period.
- 104. Alice F. BuDahn, county home agent at large, beginning June 18, 1941, at \$1700 per annum.
- 105. Merle Ramer, county home agent for Marathon County, beginning March 16, 1941, at \$1500 per annum.
- 106. The following persons appointed research fellows for the academic year 1941-42, at \$600 each:

George E. Smedberg Robert Lee VonBerg Paul G. Fluck Mechanical Engineering Chemical Engineering Mechanics.

107. Gertrude A. Burkart, Pi Lambda Theta scholar, for the 2nd semester of 1940-41, stipend \$25.

- 103. Frederick R. Rehm, Wisconsin Union Board scholar, for the 2nd semester Scholar of 1940-41, at \$25.
- 109. Lloyd F. Hoehn, Travelli Foundation scholar, for the 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$25.
- 110. The following persons granted Ida II. Sivyer scholarships for the 2nd semester of 1940-41, stipend \$25 each:

Orval C. Rheingans James H. Price Clifford J. Tice.

- lll. Allen R. Jones, Israel Shrimski scholar, for the year 1940-41, at \$40.64.
- 112. Noland A. Eidsmoe, Israel Shrimski scholar, for the 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$20.32.
- 113. Margaret M. Bohn, Oscar Rennebohm scholar for the year 1940-41, at \$100.00.
- 114. Francis E. Stewart, Oscar Rennebohm scholar for the 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$50.00.
- 115. Helen M. Volak, Helen R. Olin scholar, for the 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$41.45.
- 116. Mary H. Coenen, Kappa Kappa Gamma scholar, for the 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$25.00.
- 117. The following persons appointed "Class of 1936" scholars for the 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$17.50 each:

Robert A. Buckley Henry A. Blankenburg.

- 113. Elinor J. Johnson, Badger Board scholar, for the 2nd semester of 1940-41, // at \$25.00.
- 119. Nora E. Ogilvie, Victor E. Albright scholar, for the 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$50.00.
- 120. The following persons appointed LaVerne Noyes scholars for the 2nd semester of 1940-41, stipend \$30.00 each:

 Gloria L. Anderson

 R. Bruce Arnold

 Arden C. Eichsteadt

R. Bruce Arnold
Royal E. Cass
Frances M. Cimino
John'S. Coon, Jr.
Frank A. Ecker

Robert P. Eischens
Robert J. Giesen
Robert L. Grilley
Royal N. Harris
(Continued)

1.

11

1)

120. (Continued)

Jane B. Herman
Elgin W. Jacobson
Lester L. Jirucha, Jr.
Allen R. Jones
Russell J. Kilpatrick
Philip B. Korst, Jr.
Arne V. Larson
Donald R. Lewis
Anthony H. Lind

Richard A. Mann
A. Harold Martin
Eudare B. Schocke
T. Martin Siegrist
Walter S. Sivley
George J. E. Timm
George A. Williams
Charles H. Willison
Louise A. Wood:

Jellow

- 121. Russell A. Rebholz, track assistant, for the period March 24, 1941 to the close of the academic year 1940-41, at \$40 a month.
- 122. C. H. Jansky, emeritus professor of electrical engineering, appointed temporary assistant in electrical engineering for emergency service, April 28 to June 12, 1941, at.\$300.
- 123. Harry H. Hummel, teaching assistant in chemical engineering, for the academic year 1941-42, at \$800.
- 124. LaVern H. Beckberger, teaching assistant in chemical engineering, for the academic year 1941-42, at \$300.
- 125. Marguerite F. Spahr, assistant in dietetics, beginning May 15, 1941, at \$110 a month plus laundry.
- 126. Thomas A. Parker, assistant in agricultural economics, April 25 to June 30, 1941, at \$70.31.
- 127. Donald J. Hagedorn, assistant in plant pathology and agronomy, for the month of June 1941, at \$60.
- 123. Herbert S. Kupperman, research assistant in zoology, May and June, 1941, at \$120.
- 129. Kermit C. Berger, assistant in soils, May 1 to June 30, 1941, at \$300.
- 130. George E. Smedberg, research fellow in mechanical engineering, for 8 weeks' summer research, summer of 1941, at \$200.
- 131. The following persons appointed readers in music for the month of January 1941, at \$37.50 each:

George Hanson Hugoboom, Wayne.

132. Thell A. Bailey, industrial fellow in soils, May 1 to June 30, 1941, at \$100. Am. Polach Bellowship

- 133. Margaret Pride Hebard, assistant to the dean of women in charge of vocational advising and placement service, beginning May 1, 1941, at \$3,000 per annum, 12 months' basis.
- 134. Jesse Caldwell to teach a class in integrated social studies at Sparta, beginning January 11, 1941, 17 weeks, fees from the course not to exceed \$250.
- 135. Harwick Johnson, graduate assistant in electrical engineering, for the academic year 1941-42, at 4750.
- 136. Elmer H. Scheibe, graduate assistant in electrical engineering, for the academic year 1941-42, at 9750.
- 137. Alice C. Harper, assistant in wildlife management, June 1 to June 30, 1941, at \$1200 per annum, 12 months basis.
- 138. Carmen D. Mahnke, assistant in the office of the Director, Milwaukee Extension Center, for the month of June 1941, at \$35.
- 139. Walter C. Schneider, research assistant in cancer research, July 1, 1941 to July 1, 1942, at \$720.
- 140. Frank J. Gulli, assistant (part-time) in drawing and descriptive geometry, at \$\infty\$400 plus exemption from out-of-state tuition for the academic year 1941-42.
- 141. Esther Sneberk, assistant in dietetics, beginning May 19, 1941, at \$100 and room per month.
- 142. Peter Edward Parisi, assistant in physical therapy, beginning May 10, 1941, at \$100 a month.
- 143. Harry L. Kunze, to teach a class in C.P.A. review, Milwaukee Center, beginning July 18, 1941, for the summer of 1941, fees from the class not to exceed \$225.
- 144. Charles E. Young, to conduct summer counseling service program at Milwaukee Center, for the month of August 1941, at \$300.
- 145. Harold E. Redfield, to teach a class in mechanical drawing 1 (Sec. 2), from April 1, 1941 to the close of the second semester of 1940-41, at \$120 for the period.
- 146. Irene Schulist, county 4-H club agent for Ozaukee County, May 12 to October 12, 1941, at \$325 for the period May 12 to August 20, 1941, the county to pay the salary for the remainder of the period.

- 147. Kenneth E. Wallin, county agricultural agent for Polk County, beginning May 1, 1941, at \$1700 per annum, 12 months' basis.
- 143. Chester A. Dumond, assistant county agricultural agent for Milwaukee County, May 1 to December 31, 1941, at the rate of \$1700 per annum, 12 months' basis.
- 149. Janet I. McDermott, 4-H club agent for Lafayette County, June 16 to September 15, 1941, at 4225.
- 150. Edna A. Bauman, assistant county home agent at large, beginning June 9, 1941, at the rate of \$1700 per annum, 12 months' basis.
- 151. Lambert J. Stahler, county 4-h club agent for Waukesha County, May 10 to June 30, 1941, at \$90 for the month of May to be paid by the county, \$135 for the month of June to be paid by the University.
- 152. Thomas A. Parker, assistant county agent for Jefferson County, May 8 to June 30, 1941, at \$256.13.
- 143. Gaylord I. Mullendore, county agricultural agent for Door County, beginning July 1, 1941, at \$1700 per annum, 12 months' basis.

ADDITIONAL ACTIONS BY THE PRESIDENT

APPOINTMENTS

154. Floyd C. McIntire, post-doctorate fellow in plant pathology and biochemistry, April, May and June 1941, at \$399.99.

155. Susan Spearie, Dorothy Roberts memorial scholar, for the academic year 1941-42, at \$170.

- 156. Gideon Hadary, industrial fellow in dairy industry, Nay 1 to June 30, Dellow 1941, at \$50. National Dairy Council.
- 157. Gene Carl Rankin, Harlan B. Rogers scholar, for the academic year 1941-42.

- 158. 60 persons appointed Rehabilitation Board Scholars for the second semester of 1940-41, each to be exempt from \$23.00 of the \$32.50 general fee.
- The following persons appointed undergraduate non-resident tuition scholars for the second semester of 1940-41:

H. Russell Austin Virginia Lee Crump Howard H. Dismeier Alan W. Drew Ethel Dubin Yale Forman Sidney H. Goldstein Norman S. Green

Walter E. Kramer William D. Lane Dorothy R. Pechman Margaret E. Small Theodore Spaet Robert S. Speirs Annabel Sprague William R. Thomas

Joyce A. Wiley.

SALARY AND SERVICE ADJUSTMENTS:

- 1. Burr W. Phillips, associate professor in the teaching of history, permitted to withdraw in cash his summer session salary for the summer of 1940, \$484.50.
- 2. Richard W. Husband, assistant professor of psychology, permitted to withdraw \$819.08 in cash, summer session leave of absence accumulations.
- 3. Ludvig C. Larson, assistant professor of electrical engineering, to receive \$318 for services during the period October 1, 1940 to February 28, 1941:

Women's Dormitories, checking plans	$4\frac{1}{2}$	hours	\$9.00
Oregon School, electric changes	1	11	2.00
Stadium, electric changes	1	. II	2.00
Stadium rifle range plans and specifications	6	tt .	12.00
Oregon Distribution System, Oregon School,			
specifications	10	11	20,00
Oregon Yard Lighting, Oregon School, plans			
and specifications	43 ¹ / ₂	11	87.00
Oregon Fire Alarm System, Oregon School,			
plans and specifications	142		29.00
Waupun Prison Hospital plans and spec-			
ifications	51	a H	102.00
Waupun Warden's Residence, plans and			
specifications	26분	11	53.00
Superior State Teachers College			
(McCaskill) plans and specifications	1_	11	2.00
일보는 하는 경우를 하는 사람들이 들었다. 이번도 그는 다음이 살아갔다.]	-59		\$318.00.

- 4. James Henry Bell, appointment changed from graduate assistant to parttime instructor in mathematics and his salary increased by \$280 for the second semester of 1940-41.
- 5. Joseph O. Hirschfelder, appointment changed from instructor in chemistry to instructor in physics for the 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$1500.
- 6. Juliette Mayer, instructor in home economics (administration and foods), changed from half to full time for the 2nd semester of 1940-41, at \$300.
- 7. Fred Kiokemeister, changed from part-time instructor to instructor in mathematics for the 2nd semester of 1940-41, salary increased by \$400 for the period.
- 8. John H. Lilly, instructor in economic entomology, to receive \$1500 from University funds and \$300 from Tobacco By-Products, fund 15B for the academic year 1940-41.

SALARY AND SERVICE ADJUSTMENT:

- 9. Jacob Ornstein, part-time instructor in Spanish and Portuguese, salary increased by \$300 for the second semester of 1940-41.
- 10. Anne Joanne Bolton, assistant supervisor in social service, salary changed for the period February 2 to March 8, 1941, to receive \$100 a month plus 3 meals and lodging.
- 11. Cachel T. Dregne, assistant in social service, transferred from orthopedics to residents, internes and teachers, hospital 10-A, beginning March 1, 1941, at \$100 a month plus 3 meals and lodging.
- 12. Raymond C. Rightsell, appointed to teach 3 C.A.A. program ground school courses in Stevens Point, to receive \$676 instead of \$450 for the 2nd semester of 1940-41.
- 13. Paul L. Trump, appointed to grade correspondence-study papers in mathematics, salary increased from \$400 to \$500 for the year 1940-41.
- 14. Phil P. Hayes, appointed to teach an evening class in real estate selling 311, salary increased from \$225 to "not to exceed" \$255 for the 2nd semester of 1940-41.
- 15. James Bringe, appointed to read correspondence-study papers in history courses on a fee basis, salary increased from \$300 to \$500 for the period October 3, 1940 to the close of the year 1940-41.
- 16. Eva Johnson, appointed to grade correspondence study papers in health courses on a fee basis, salary increased from \$50 to not to exceed \$75 for the fiscal year 1940-41.
- 17. John Francis Youngblood, graduate assistant in physics, salary increased from \$112.50 to \$150 a month for the period February 19, 1941 to the close of the 2nd semester of 1940-41.
- 18. Daniel R. Miller, assistant in electrical engineering, to receive \$53 for services during the period February 21 to March 15, 1941 as shown below:
 - 49 hours refrigerator tests

 4 hours fence controller tests

 53 hours.
- 19. Willis Austin, graduate assistant in English, salary increased by \$200 and service increased from 1/3 to 2/3 time for the 2nd semester of 1940-41.
- 20. Caroline H. Starr, assistant in social service, transferred from residents, internes and teachers to orthopedics, beginning March 1, 1941, salary \$100 a month plus 3 meals.

SALARY AND SERVICE ADJUSTMENTS:

- 21. Donald Merriam Allen, graduate assistant in English, salary increased from \$200 to \$260 for the period April 1, 1941 to the close of the 2nd semester of 1940-41.
- 22. Gerald Berg Borsuk, musician assistant in physical education women, salary increased from \$60 to \$120 (to receive \$1.00 per hour) for the 2nd semester of 1940-41.
- 23. Joseph R. Dillinger, graduate assistant in physics, salary increased by \$125 for the 2nd semester of 1940-41.
- 24. Mary Stephens Hewlett, graduate assistant in physics, salary increased by \$125 for the 2nd semester of 1940-41.
- 25. James Merrill Hush, graduate assistant in physics, salary increased by \$187.50 for the 2nd semester of 1940-41.
- 26. John Frances Youngblood, graduate assistant in physics, salary increas by \$187.50 for the 2nd semester of 1940-41.
- 27. Richard Sanford Dewey, graduate assistant in sociology and anthropology, salary increased by \$62.50 for the 2nd semester of 1940-41.
- 23. Charles Wright Mills, graduate assistant in sociology and anthropology, salary increased by \$62.50 for the 2nd semester of 1940-41.
- 29. David G. Steinicke, graduate assistant in sociology and anthropology, salary increased by \$\infty\$62.50 for the 2nd semester of 1940-41.
- 30. Malcolm B. Cole, graduate assistant in physics, salary increased by \$125 for the 2nd semester of 1940-41.
- 31. The following graduate assistants in mathematics received salary increases during the 2nd semester of 1940-41, as indicated below:

그 무슨 이 수건 이 물로 그릇이네. 그리고 사람은 사이를 보고 있는데 그를 보고 있다.	£ 50 00
John Oswald Danielson	\$50.00
Wilhelm Skjelstad Erickson	50.00
Vladimir Morkovin	100.00
Thomas Edmond Oberbeck	50.00
Robert Lee Wilson	100.00

32. The following graduate assistants in physics to receive salary increases of \$187.50 each for the 2nd semester of 1940-41:

Rolland Perry Harold L. Stout.

33. The following graduate assistants in history to receive salary increases of 662.50 each for the 2nd semester of 1940-41:

H. Henry Lumpkin, Jr. Milton D. Speizman.

SALARY AND SERVICE ADJUSTMENTS:

34. The salaries of the following graduate assistants in Spanish increased for the 2nd semester of 1940-41 by the amounts indicated below:

George A. Chapman	From \$300 to \$500	
John A. Coons	From \$200 to \$400	
Rodolfo O. Floripe	From \$200 to \$400	
Donald F. Fogelquist	From \$200 to \$350	
Peter L. Gilbert	From \$200 to \$400	
Frank R. Thompson	From \$200 to \$350	
Kathryn C. Surratt	From \$200 to \$350	
Clevy L. Strout	From \$300 to \$450	
Sara V. Smith	From \$200 to \$400	
Ferd H. Rowan	From \$200 to \$400	
Leon F. Reynolds	From \$200 to \$400	
Adolf Ramirez	From \$500 to \$600.	

- 35. Albert L. LeDuc, graduate assistant in Spanish and French, to receive \$200 of his salary from the Spanish department instead of the French department. (No increase in salary)
- 36. Catherine E. Clayton, assistant in dairy husbandry, salary increased by \$117.40 for the period February 10 to June 30, 1941.
- 37. Daniel R. Miller, laboratory assistant in electrical engineering, salary increased by \$75 for the 2nd semester of 1940-41.
- 38. C. Warwick Evans to receive \$32.25 for services in connection with the Beethoven concert, Pro Arte fund 15B.
- 39. Willard P. Bitters, assistant in horticulture, service increased from ½ to 3/4 time and salary increased by \$50 for the period May 1 to June 30, 1941.

ADDITIONAL ACTIONS BY THE PRESIDENT

SALARY AND SERVICE ADJUSTMENTS:

- 40. William Moody, reader in sociology, salary increased by (11.00 for the first senester of 1940-41.
- 41. Eugene Geiger, reader in sociology, salary increased by 62.50 for the first semester of 1940-41.
- 42. Edwin B. Petersen, appointed to grade correspondence papers in commerce courses, on the fee basis, salary increased from "amount not to exceed \$200" to amount not to exceed \$400 for the fiscal year 1940-41.
- 43. J. McDonald, appointed to grade correspondence papers in business law courses, on the fee basis, salary increased from amount not to exceed (150 to amount not to exceed (250 for the fiscal year 1940-41.
- 44. Frank E. Heilman, reader in sociology, salary increased from \$90 to not to exceed \$107 for the second semester of 1940-41.
- 45. Fred W. Dodge, research assistant in chemical engineering, appointment extended to June 30, 1941, at \$125 a month.
- 46. William R. Marquart, county agricultural agent for Polk County, transferred to county agricultural agent for Clark County, salary at the rate of \$1700 per annum, 12 months' basis, May 1 to December 31, 1941.
- 47. Bert W. Meyer, acting assistant superintendent of Wisconsin General Hospital, appointment to take effect May 1, 1941 instead of April 1, 1941.

LEAVES OF ABSENCE:

- 1. James S. Earley, assistant professor of economics, granted leave of absence for the 2nd semester of 1940-41, without pay.
- 2. Julian E. Mack, assistant professor of physics, granted leave of absence for the 2nd semester of 1940-41, without pay.
- 3. Reed A. Rose, assistant professor of mechanical engineering, granted leave of absence from March 3, 1941 to the close of the academic year 1941-42, without pay.
- 4. Fuller O. Griffith, instructor in drawing, granted leave of absence from March 14, 1941 to the close of the academic year 1941-42, without pay.
- 5. Raymond Arthur McMahon, resident in neuro-psychiatry, granted leave of absence beginning March 1, 1941, without pay.
- 6. Marie A. Ramsey, assistant in nursing, granted leave of absence beginning February 1, 1941, without pay.
- 7. Justin Waterman, assistant in agricultural engineering, granted leave of absence from April 1 to June 30, 1941, without pay.
- 8. Joseph J. Peot, instructor in mechanical engineering, granted leave of absence for the 2nd semester of 1940-41 and the academic year 1941-42, without pay.

..DDITIONAL ACTIONS BY THE PRESIDENT

LEAVES OF ABSENCE:

- 9. Ernest G. Kuenzi, pharmacist and instructor in pharmacy, granted leave of absence, without pay, beginning May 1, 1941.
- 10. Frederick A. Maxfield, instructor in electrical engineering, granted leave of absence, without pay, from April 13, 1941 to the close of the academic year 1941-42.

BUDGET:

- 1. Transfer of \$469 from Regents' Unassigned 1-D to Physical Plant New Construction for the construction of two offices in Room 216 of the Horticultural Building.
- 2. Increase of \$24,166.34 in the 3-K Dairy and Farm Sales Revolving Fund budget. Aga bud

ADDITIONAL ACTIONS BY THE PRESIDENT

BUDGET:

3. Approval of the following budget:

Proposed Budget for Project 15B-329, Infantile Paralysis

I.	Salaries (a)			<u>l year</u>	5 years
	Classification	No.	Monthly	Total	
	Assoc. Bacteriologist Asst. " P.T. Technician P.T.	1 1 1	Salary 	\$2,400 720 600	
	Assoc. Biochemist Technician P.T.	1 1	240 50	2,300 600	
	Total			\$7,200	\$36,000
II.	Equipment, Scientific and	Offi	ce (b)		
	Description Unit Cos	t	No.		
	Animal cages \$18 Repairs for Cages		100	\$1,300 300	01,300 1,200
	Total			\$2 , 100	\$3,000
III.	Expendable Supplies (c)				
	Description Unit Cost	5	No. or Amt.		
	Animals \$15 Feed and vitamin conce Chemical supplies Feed containers	entrat	120 .es	\$1,800 1,200 500 200	\$9,000 6,000 2,500 1,000
	Total			\$3,700	\$18 , 500
IV.	Other Expense (d)				
	Contingencies			<u>[1,000</u>	<u>\$ 5,000</u>
	Total			14,000	\$62 , 500

^{4.} Increase of \$6,000 in the 3-K dairy and farm sales revolving fund budget from balances carried forward July 1, 1940. Agricult